
 
3 PRIMROSE STREET 

 NEWTOWN, CT 06470  

TEL. (203) 270-4221 

 

 

BOARD OF FINANCE  

MINUTES  

REGULAR MEETING  

Council Chambers 

3 Primrose Street  

Newtown, CT 06470  

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

These minutes are subject to approval by the Board of Finance 
 

Present: Sandy Roussas, Keith Alexander, Ned Simpson, Chris Gardner, John Madzula and Matthew 

Mihalcik 

Absent: None 

Also Present: Finance Director, Bob Tait, Police Captain Vanghele, Chair of Police Commission, Joel 

Faxon, Police Chief Viadero, Public Works Director, Fred Hurley, and one member of the public 
 

Chair Sandy Roussas called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  Attendees saluted the American Flag. 
 

Voter Comments 

None 
 

Communications 

Chair Roussas shared with the Board the document 2020-21 BOF Budget Questions (see attachments) 
 

Minutes 

Keith Alexander moved to approve the minutes of the Public Hearing on February 13, 2020. Matt 

Mihalcik seconded. All in favor and motion passes.  
 

Keith Alexander moved to approve the minutes of February 13, 2020. Ned Simpson seconded. All in 

favor and motion passes.  
 

First Selectman’s Report 

None  
 

Finance Director’s Report  

None 

Unfinished Business 

Debt Policy  

Tabled 

 

BOS FY 2020-21 Budget 

Police Department 

The overall budget for the Newtown Police Department for the 2020-21 FY Budget has increased by 

2.80% or  $195, 980 (see attached). 
 

Mr. Mihalcik asked if the current employed 45 officers include the Chief and Captain.  Chief Viadero 

said yes. 
 

Mr. Gardner asked about when the cruisers come offline if they are sold.  Chief Viadero said they are 

traded in and receive roughly $1,000/trade in for the Crown Victorias. Hoping to receive around $2,500-

$3,000 for the newer vehicles.  The Department is reaching out to area Universities to see if they will get 

a better price.  



 

Chair Roussas noted there will be an overlap of utilities with the new police department.  She inquired if 

anyone knew how much of an increase this will be.  Chief Viadero responded by saying that there will 

be overlap and Director of Public Works, Fred Hurley, will help navigate that increase.  
 

Chair Roussas asked if the new facility will house more employees.  Chief Viadero said they are not 

hiring, but he does want to increase officers given they are low in numbers at some point in future years 

(per his presentation). The facility can handle roughly 58 personnel, so the space is there if the need 

arises.  
 

Mr. Alexander noticed on page 129 Uniform Allowance and the reduction in vest costs. Chief Viadero 

said he will not sacrifice officers’ safety and the monies will likely come from the First Selectmen 

Revenue Account.  
 

Mr. Mihalcik asked had the Town been able to employ more officers what would they be used for. Chief 

Viadero responded by saying he would utilize the additional resources for the Traffic Division. To 

follow up on Mr. Mihalcik’s question, Mr. Simpson asked if in doing so could congestion be eliminated. 

Chief Viadero said Newtown is used as a bypass between Bridgeport and Lower Fairfield County. The 

Police Department can’t do much in the way of congestion; however, he said the additional help would 

focus on speeding, congestion concerns and distracted driving.  
 

Mr. Gardner asked if the Town receives any revenue from speeding tickets.  Chief Viadero said we do 

not.  Alternatively, the Town receives grant monies, but not any direct funding. 
 

Chair Roussas inquired whether Chief Viadero had any requests for enhancements that he didn’t make 

because of budgetary concerns.  Chief Viadero said no he did not and he understands the budget.  He 

also commented that he greatly appreciates the taxpayers allowing the new facility for the Police 

Department.   
 

Mr. Mihalcik asked about the cost of adding a new officer.  Chief Viadero said an entry-level officer 

would cost about $58,000 without benefits. Finance Director, Bob Tait, said it would be an additional 

$25,000 with family benefits. Adding additional equipment would bring the cost to about $110,000 to 

$120,000 per year.  He also noted that it takes about a year from recruiting an officer to being fully 

trained and working independently.  
 

Public Works  

Highway Division 

Mr. Fred Hurley, Director of Public Works, distributed information packages to the Board (see 

attachments). 

Chair Roussas asked Mr. Fred Hurley what his budgetary challenges were.  Mr. Hurley responded by 

saying the roads are an ongoing challenge and hoping when the FEMA money comes they will finish the 

rest of their road projects.  He noted the $3MM budget for roads seems to be okay.  Mr. Hurley 

mentioned his staffing levels are okay as well.  He mentioned utilizing equipment in Non Recurring 

Capital has worked well. Mr. Hurley made clear that the Department is using only what they need when 

they need it.   
 

Mr. Hurley noted his biggest change internally is for his Crew Leaders to now function as “District 

Supervisors” for more continuity. This is not a budgetary change rather he is hoping to get the workers 

to feel their ownership into their parts of town that they are assigned through more training.  
 

Mr. Mihalcik inquired about what incentivizes the Crew Leaders/District Supervisors to have the least 

amount of work orders.  Mr. Hurley commented by saying the workers need to feel responsible for their 

part of town. 
 

Mr. Simpson noted on page 169 that the Department covered 25 miles of road last year and this year. It 

will take nearly 11 years to cover 275 miles of roads in Newtown, which is quite a long period of time.  

Mr. Hurley said this is our challenge; however, there are other aspects of the budget to help.  Mr. Hurley 

said the need to extend the life of asphalt is not only through chip sealing. There are newer products that 

will help to increase the lifespan of roads closer to 20 years that are more environmentally sound. The 



oil in the asphalt has changed over the last several years; therefore, roads simply do not last as long.  

This problem is not unique to Newtown. Previously, the Town was doing 10-12 miles per year, so this 

has increased over time. Mr. Hurley mentioned that using sealant products will help.  

 

Chair Roussas asked about the estimate of roads that still need repair. Mr. Hurley said more than 60%-

70% of roads in Newtown are serviceable and structurally sound (appearance may not be attractive but 

quality is okay). He said 20-25% of roads are in need of help. Mr. Hurley also mentioned there is 

extremely old metal piping that needs to be addressed and unfortunately these can be found all over 

town.  
 

Mr. Simpson noticed the Line Painting budget line item has increased from $25,000 to $75,000.  He 

thanks the town because this is a critical matter in particular for senior drivers at night. Mr. Hurley said 

they are painting more lines as well as using better paint (that is the combination of increase in this line 

item). 
 

Winter Maintenance  

Mr. Gardner asked if the Department has been able to achieve any efficiencies from the mild winter. Mr. 

Hurley responded by saying maintenance projects are always being done.   
 

Mr. Alexander asked about the large amounts of salt and sand that we have accrued for this year-- can 

we stock pile this?  Mr. Hurley said we can save a certain amount, but have already used a fair amount 

of materials given the amount of ice we have had thus far.  
 

Chair Roussas asked if we are seeing savings due to the mild winter and lack of overtime for employees. 

Mr. Hurley said yes (see attached). 
 

Transfer Station 

Mr. Hurley noted there are no personnel changes and basic costs are the same. Within the contractual 

services budget, there were shifts of costs in terms of recyclables (significant increase) and wood 

grinding from the Macroburst (FEMA covered some but not all and was a significant cost to the Town). 

There will be a change in the future regarding solid waste in how glass will be handled. This will not be 

a dollar change per se, but rather a program change (the new process hasn’t been solidified yet).  
 

Mr. Gardner asked if the amount we are recycling has gone down. Mr. Hurley stated the dollar fee for 

garbage is relatively flat and the quantity has decreased. The recycling fee has increased significantly. 
 

Public Building Maintenance 

Mr. Hurley said they are working with Sustainable Energy Committee to build towards a more 

sustainable/alternative energy town. One will see that the utilities are high right now for the Community 

Center, but this is a similar case with the new SHES. Initially, costs were high because it takes time to 

work out the kinks even though it’s a new building.  
 

Mr. Simpson asked when Public Works will assume the utilities for police station. Mr. Hurley responded 

by saying when the Police Department is out of the Main Street facility.  The hope is for it to be by the 

end of this year. Mr. Hurley mentioned the Senior Center is covered by Public Works. Mr. Simpson 

commented that the Senior Center has no Building Management System; therefore, one needs to do 

regulate the temperature manually. Mr. Hurley said they are looking at remedying this in the future and 

won’t need to call on the BOF for help in terms of cost. 
 

Mr. Gardner inquired about the GE Grant for maintenance.  Mr. Hurley said the Town receives 

$1MM/year for 5 years; however, it is going into Fund Balance and hoping it will last many years 

beyond that. 

 

Newtown Board of Education FY 2020-2021 Budget 

Tabled until February 20th, 2020 

 

New Business 

None 
 



 

Voter Comments 

None 
 

Announcements 

On Thursday, February 20th Edmond Town Hall will come to the BOF meeting as well as Michelle Ku 

and Dr. Rodrigue from the BOE, Doug Lord, Director of the Library, Natalie Jackson, Director of 

Human Services (Senior Center) to further discuss the budget. On Monday, February 24th, the 

Community Center and Parks and Rec will come to discuss their budgets.  Chair Roussas said the BOF 

should be ready for a vote on Thursday February 27, 2020. 
 

Adjournment 

Keith Alexander made a motion to adjourn. Chris Gardner seconded. All members were in favor and the 

meeting was adjourned at 8:49pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kiley Gottschalk 

 

Attachments 

Preliminary Questions for the BOE 

2020-21 BOF Budget Questions  

Police Presentation 

Public Works Department Information Package 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Some preliminary questions for the BOE: 

 

Local Tuition: How many students are paying to be educated in Newtown? 

 

Energy costs projected to decrease 8 percent. What is leading to that calculation? How confident are we 

in that estimate? 

 

Transportation: When does the contract expire? Any way to reduce the number of buses we use (route 

consolidation for example)? 

 

MS Baseball/Softball/Basketball scheduling for $3K. Is the AD capable of performing this function? 

 

Early retirement incentive for teachers: When was the last time we offered this program? Any merit to 

offering it again? 

 

Athletics Site Director for $6,235. Job description for this position? Who is performing these duties 

now? 

 

Any recent discussions with the town about increasing solar panel use? 

 













Newtown Police Budget 
Presentation 2020/2021

Board of Finance



Budget Highlights
• Increased by 2.80%, $195,980, most attributed to 

contractual increases and increased contribution 
to pension fund. 
• Most line items remained constant for purchased 

services, software and equipment. 
• Overtime line also remained constant. 
• Vehicle purchases saw an increase due to a new 

model introduction of the Ford Explorer, $7,440.
• Capital items needed purchase through asset 

forfeiture account, tasers, computer hardware, 
training cost, etc.



Question – Staffing Comparison

• Is the Newtown Police Department sized to similar 
Departments? (staffing)
• FBI provides statistics on adequately staffing a law 

enforcement agency per/capita: 1.8 to 2.1 officers 
per/1000
• 1.8 X 28,000 citizens (2010 census) = 50.4 Officers             
• FBI Suggested staffing for Newtown = 50.4  



Similar Departments
• New Milford
• Population 28k
• 64 sq/miles
• 47 Officers

• Ridgefield
• Population 25k
• 35 sq/miles
• 42 Officers



Similar Departments
• Monroe
• Population 20k
• 25 sq/miles
• 43 Officers

• Brookfield
• Population 17k
• 19 sq/miles
• 37 Officers



Similar Departments
• Bethel
• Population 18.5k
• 19 sq/miles
• 40 officers

• Seymour
• Population 16.5k
• 50 sq/miles
• 40 Officers 



Similar Departments

• Westport
• Population 26k
• 19 sq/miles
• 64 Officers



Newtown Police Department

• Population 28k
• 58 sq/mile
• 225 miles of surface road
• 32,465 calls for service
• 45 Officers (Formerly Had 47)
• 28 Front line Patrol officers
• 6 Field Supervisors (sargeants)
• 1 Patrol Commander  (lieutenant)



Question –Extra Duty Impact on 
BOS Budget
• No impact on BOS Budget
• Cost paid by private contractors
• Revenue producer
• Billable for Cruisers 2019 - $325,089
• Billable Hours 2019 – 12,468 
• Anticipated revenue 2020/21 $300k
• Fee’s, applicable taxes and contributions charged 

to vendor
• Jobs For Blue (Service Provider)  



Cost of M-ATV To Budget
• Vehicle is not a patrol vehicle
• Limited emergency use
• Loaned by government program
• 40 miles on vehicle
• No anticipated maintenance cost due to condition of 

vehicle
• Regional asset - Blue Plan  - sharing of municipal 

resources in case of emergencies
• Not owned by Town



Front Line Vehicles

• 10 Patrol
• 1 K9
• 2 SRO
• 3 supervisors
• 2 Traffic unit
• 3 Detective Division
• 4 Extra Duty
• Administrative Cars  (Chief and Captain)



2019 Connecticut's Safest 
Towns/Cities 



2019 Connecticut's Safest Cities





Question?


































